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July 31, 2107 Reference No. 8618692 
 
Ms. Sharon Lynn 
City of Rehoboth Beach 
City Hall Complex 
229 Rehoboth Avenue 
Rehoboth, Delaware 19971 
 
Re:  Construction of Contract No. RB-WWTP CIP 03-2017 Rehoboth Beach WWTP Capital Improvement 

Program Upgrade Phase 1 
 
Dear Ms. Lynn: 
 
Five bids were received and opened for the above referenced project on July 13, 2017.  They were 

tabulated as follows:  

  

Bid Bidder Base Bid Price Total Bid Price 

1 Allan Myers MD, Inc. $2,199,575.00 $2,256,555.00 

2 Johnston Construction Company $2,456,760.30 $2,517,410.30 

3 M2 Construction, LLC $2,554,660.00 $2,609,360.00 

4 Bearing Construction Company $2,736,799.00 $2,776,149.00 

5 Hopkin Construction, Inc. $3,307,850.00 $3,374,000.00 

 
As requested by the City of Rehoboth Beach, GHD reviewed the bid package submitted by the lowest 

bidder, Allan Myers MD, Inc. (Myers). Myers’ total bid price of $2,256,555.00 was $450,139.86 (16.6%) 

less than the average total bid of $2,706,694.86, and $260,885.30 (10.4%) lower than the second lowest 

bid. Their total bid was $513,445 (18.5%) less than the Engineer’s estimated total bid of $2,770,000.00. 

 

After reviewing Myers’ bid proposal, it was identified that there was a discrepancy of $20.00 in Article 5 - 

Basis of Bid, Section C: Total Bid Price between the numerical value and the value in words.  The 

numerical value is the arithmetically correct value.  The total bid price in words currently reads ““Two 

Million, Two Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand, Five Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars and Zero Cents,” but should 

read “Two Million, Two Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand, Five Hundred Fifty-Five Dollars and Zero Cents.” 

 

It was also identified that Myer’s had included an extract from the Delaware Water Pollution Control 

Revolving Loan Fund, Program Requirements relating to the Equal Opportunity Clause (EO11246) and 

the Certification of Non­Segregated Facilities, instead of submitting the actual forms for these items. 

Myers submitted the correct forms upon request by GHD. 

 

Based on a review of Myers’ bid proposal, the apparent low bidder is deemed to be responsive and 

responsible to the requirements of the bid documents. Myers’ have complied with the following bid 

proposal requirements: 

 

 Acknowledged Addenda Numbers 1 and 2 

 Submitted the Required Bid Security in the form of a Bid Bond 

 Submitted the Bidder’s Qualification Statement 

 Submitted a List of Subcontractors and Suppliers 
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 Submitted the required Contractor’s License information 

 Submitted the Non-Collusive Bidding Certification 

 Submitted the Equal Opportunity Employer form 

 Submitted the Delaware Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund, Program Requirements: 

o Delaware Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Compliance Form (EO 11246) (correct 

form provided after bid) 

o Notice to Prospective Subcontractors of Requirements for Certification of Non­Segregated 

Facilities compliance form (correct form provided after bid) 

o EPA form number 6100-3 - DBE Program Subcontractor Performance Form  

o EPA form number 6100-4 - DBE Program Subcontractor Utilization Form  

o DBE Rule Term and Condition Form 

o Contractor’s American Iron and Steel Certification 

 

Three references were provided by Myers; however, only one of the original references provided, Mount 

Holly Municipal Utilities Authority, was able to provide any information about their experience with Myers.  

As such, Myers provided two additional references for a Filter Plant Upgrade in Wilmington Delaware, and 

an ODEC Raw Water Supply Project in Peach Bottom Pennsylvania. Each of the references was 

contacted and summaries of the reference calls are listed below, with copies of the complete phone 

survey results attached. 

 

ODEC Raw Water Supply Project 

Owner 
Old Dominion Electric Cooperative 
Peach Bottom, Pennsylvania 
804-747-0592 

Contract Amount $38,000,000 

Consultant 
Burns and McDonnell 
Robert Fayard 
816-822-4275 

Completed  January 2017 

Comments 

The following is a review based on phone conversation with Robert Fayard: 
 
Project Overview: The project involved the construction of a new pumping station to supply raw 

cooling water to a power plant.  Work done by Allan Myers included excavation and support of 
excavation for pump station site, new intake structure, new wet well shaft, installation of pump 
station building and equipment, installation of power generator and placement of five miles of 
HDPE pipeline. 
Project Schedule: The project was completed on schedule. 

 
Project Budget/Change Orders: Work was completed on budget without any significant change 

orders from the contractor. 
 
Project Quality: The customer was satisfied with the workmanship of the contractor and stated 

that very little work had to be redone. 
 
Summary: Overall the customer was very happy with the performance of Allan Myers, expressing 

that they would use their services again and would give them a letter of recommendation. 
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Maple Avenue and Rancocas Road WWTP Upgrades and Expansion 

Owner 
Mount Holly Municipal Utilities Authority 
Mount Holly, New Jersey 
609-267-1100 

Contract 
Amount 

$27,677,475 

Consultant 
Mount Holly Municipal Utilities Authority 
Joel Hervey 
609-267-1251 

Completed  April 2011 

Comments 

The following is a review based on conversations with Joel Hervey: 
 
Project Overview: The project involved the construction of a new headwork structure, an 

effluent pumping station, drain pumping station and pump and blower.  Customer stated that the 
Maple Avenue plant was built from the ground up. 
 
Project Schedule: The project was completed on schedule if not a little early.  Due to the 

project having a single discharge point, the original schedule had to be amended such that both 
phases of the project had aligning schedules. 
  
Project Budget/Change Orders: The contract was completed under budget, the original 

contract was $30+ million dollars and the work was completed for $27,677,475.  
 
Project Quality: Customer was very satisfied with the quality of work performed by Allan 

Myers. 
  
Summary: The customer stated that in his 33 years of experience Allan Myers was without a 

doubt the best contractor that he had ever worked with. 

 
 

Brandywine Filter Plant Upgrades 

Owner 

City of Wilmington Department of Public 
Works  
302-576-3878 

Contract Amount $19,000,000 

Consultant 
City of Wilmington 
Matthew Demo 
267-307-3284 

Completed  June 2013 

Comments 

The following is a review based on a phone conversation with Matthew Demo: 
 
Project Overview: The capacity of the plant was increased from 10MGD to 14MGD.  The work 

included removal of the existing filters and replacing them with membrane filters.  Additionally five 
vertical turbine pumps, new chemical systems, concrete and yard piping was installed. 
 
Project Schedule: The project was completed on time and the contractor adhered to the 

schedule. 
 
Project Budget/Change Orders: No change orders were submitted by the contractor. 

 
Project Quality: The customer was very satisfied with the quality of the workmanship done on 

the project. 
 
Summary: The customer stated that they have worked with Allan Myers on several projects and 

the contractor is one of the most conscientious groups that they’ve ever worked with.  Allan Myers 
was always fair during any unforeseen circumstances and that’s important on large projects. 
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Summary and Recommendation 
 
Based on the information provided, GHD believes that Allan Myers MD, Inc., has been responsive, and is 

capable of performing the Construction of Contract No. RB-WWTP CIP 03-2017 Rehoboth Beach WWTP 

Capital Improvement Program Upgrade Phase 1 project within the requirements set forth in the Bid 

Documents. GHD sees no reason not to recommend the award of the project in the amount of 

$2,256,555.00 to Allan Myers MD, Inc. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
GHD INC. 

 
 
Kelvin George, PE 
Project Manager 
 
KSG/cn 
 
Attachments:  Allan Myers MD, Inc. Bid Package 
 Canvass of Bids 
 Phone Surveys 
 Executed Rehoboth Compliance Form 












